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TO:        James L. App, City Manager 

FROM:     Ronald Whisenand, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT:    Highway 101 Median Barrier Project Recommendations  

DATE:        June 2, 2009 

Needs: Consider and provide recommendations to SLOCOG and Caltrans on a proposed 
Highway 101 median project 

Facts: 1. Caltrans is proposing to install a concrete median barrier on State Route 101 
from the City’s southerly Spring Street off ramp north to Highway 46 East.  
The project, which is being initiated by Caltrans’ Traffic Safety Division, is 
proposed to provide Caltrans worker safety and prevent cross median traffic 
collisions.

2. Presently, beyond the mature oleanders there are no measures to prevent cross 
median traffic collisions, such as use of a Caltrans standard metal “Thrie 
beam” barrier.  Worker safety during periodic cleaning and pruning is 
provided through Caltrans lane closures. 

3. The proposal involves removing the existing vegetation (with the exception of 
three existing oak trees) installing single and dual concrete barriers (to prevent 
cross-over accidents), additional paving to eliminate the need for mowing (up 
to 16’ from the travel lane), and replacement plants that at maturity won’t 
extend beyond the limits of the concrete barriers. 

4. There is no Caltrans policy or statewide program that mandates use of 
concrete barriers in areas with planted medians in excess of 45 feet.  Thrie 
beam barriers, as were recently installed between Atascadero and Santa 
Margarita are considered an acceptable standard.  Landscaped medians with 
hardy and showy species such as oleander are common within the California 
highway system, especially in semi rural settings. 

Analysis & 
Conclusion: The City supports worker safety and appreciates Caltrans’ recent 101 landscape 

project that improves the character and quality of our community.  However, the 
removal of existing vegetation, additional paving, and long stretches of concrete 
barrier will have a significant visual impact on the City.  State Route 101 was 
recently evaluated as part of our Gateway Design Standards and plays an 
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important “entryway” role getting citizens and visitors into town.  The barrier 
project would negatively affect this “entryway” corridor. 

 The median presently contains a healthy supply of trees, screening shrubs, and low 
grasses.  Unlike asphalt and concrete highways common in urban areas of the 
State, this colorful mix of landscaping and grassy shoulders is more appropriate in 
our semi-rural environment.  The addition of a Thrie beam barrier to the existing 
landscaped median would be sufficient to add safety to the corridor while 
maintaining community character. 

 Caltrans is proposing to mitigate visual impacts with the use of colored and/or 
stamped concrete, and replacement plantings of smaller species in approximately 
40% of the median (limited to those straight stretches of State Route 101).  
Initially City staff had suggested that if maintenance of the oleander was an issue, 
that Caltrans could replant the median with trees such as oaks.  This alternative 
was rejected.  While travel lanes are 45-60 feet apart and would support trees with 
a healthy canopy in that distance, Caltrans’ preference (not policy) is to limit the 
canopy to the 12 foot area between concrete barriers.  In addition, they will not 
permit trees or any planting along stretches with a single barrier (approximately 
60% of the project area). 

 While worker safety and cross-over accidents are a legitimate concern, it is 
important to note that Caltrans was unable to supply the City with any records of 
worker injuries, or cross-over accidents along this stretch of State Route 101. 
When maintenance, including barrier repair, mowing, and landscape pruning is 
needed, Caltrans crews will temporarily close the left lane to provide needed 
safety.  This practice appears to provide adequate safety and avoid significant 
traffic delays. 

Options: a. Request Caltrans to retain and maintain the existing landscape treatment 
(oleanders and existing trees) and install Thrie beam barriers to prevent 
cross-over accidents, w/o additional median paving.

 b. Agree to Caltrans proposal for landscape removal, concrete barrier, and 
added pavement along with Council preference for concrete treatment 
being provided; or

 c. Amend, modify or reject the foregoing options. 
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